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Clarification Note No. 3 

Procurement procedure: GSA/OP/05/20 – SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE EU SPACE PROGRAMME 

(WFID: 262207) 

 

Question #32 
 
Reference: Annex I to Invitation to Tender – section 2.2.10.2  
 
Question: Given the fact that there is currently less than 6 weeks of time until the deadline and the 
fact that some key questions (especially ones influencing the composition of the team) have not yet 
been answered by the GSA, it is impossible to organise a formal competitive tender to select 
subcontractors within the current timeframe.  
 
To ensure fair competition, equality of treatment, transparency and best value for money the 
subcontractors should be given sufficient information and time with a minimum of three weeks to 
respond with offers, leaving the prime contractor little to no time to evaluate the offers and include 
the winning subcontractor(s) in their tender.  
 
Therefore, could this requirement be considered fulfilled if the prime contractor has approached and 
negotiated with several different companies outside its group of companies and chosen the most 
compatible one(s) as subcontractor(s)? If not, could the above at least be considered as "a justification 
providing compelling reasoning for the non-compliance with the above-mentioned requirement"? 
 
Alternatively, we would request an extension of the deadline of a minimum of 4 weeks to be able fulfil 
this requirement. 
 
Answer: Section 2.2.10.2 of Annex I reads that Competitive tendering outside the Tenderer’s group is 
considered to have taken place when more than one offer [for the respective subcontract] from an 
entity outside the Tenderer’s group has been requested by the Tenderer while the procurement 
principles listed in the section have been respected and thorough visibility of the subcontracted 
entities financial and technical offers is provided. If the tenderer can show that these requirements 
have been fulfilled, leading to the selection of its subcontractor(s), the requirement of competitive 
subcontracting is considered fulfilled (however without prejudice to the requirement of the minimum 
share of 10 %). Further, section 2.2.10.2 of Annex I provides that if the Tenderer does not manage to 
complete the competitive tender(s) required by the time of tender submission, it shall submit a signed 
undertaking presenting credible tendering plan it intends to carry out. 
 

Question #33 
 
Reference: Annex I to Invitation to Tender – section 3.2.1, L9. criterion  
 
Question: We would like to ask for clarification on the Legal and regulatory capacity criteria (criterion 
L9). Does the prime contractor need the CRYPTO clearance, if he will not work on the task, where this 
clearance is needed?  
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Answer: Under the need-to-know principle only entities handling CRYPTO information for the 
performance of their tasks under the contract require the respective clearance/authorisation. If this 
principle does not apply to the prime, CRYPTO clearance is not required. For the avoidance of doubt, 
a corresponding allocation of tasks does not avail the prime of its overall responsibility to perform the 
contract, even if it cannot access relevant information due to a lack of clearance/authorisation. 
 

Question #34 
 
Reference: Annex I.10 - Lot 10 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise 
 
Question: We would like to ask for clarification regarding Lot 10 - document 11.10 Annex I.10 - Lot 
10 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise. Here in Table 1, Task 1 Prague is indicated together with the 
expected missions also to Prague. Could you please confirm what is the expected location and 
missions within this task?  
 
Answer: There is a typo in the published document, the cell “Expected missions” for Task 1 Schedule 
management shall read “2x 1-day mission in Toulouse, France”. 
 
 

Question #35 
 
Reference: Annex I.10 - Lot 10 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise  
 
Question: We would like to ask for clarification regarding Lot 10 - document 11.10 Annex I.10 - 
Lot 10 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise. Here in Table 1, Task 5, 2x 1-day missions in 
Prague is mentioned. This is total for the whole 5,5 FTE or each one of these FTEs will 
have this mission?  
 
Answer: The missions are indicated as the expected total. 
 
Question #36 
 
Reference: Annex I.10 - Lot 10 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise 
 
Question: We would like to ask for clarification regarding Lot 10 - document 11.10 Annex I.10 - 
Lot 10 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise. To which of the tasks the 5 asterisks (*****) 
belong to? There is an explanation below the table, but not connected to specific task.  
 
Answer: The 5 asterisks (*****) apply to the FTE at Location of GSMC-FR and GSMC-ES under Task 5. 
 
Question #37 
 
Reference: Annex I.3 - Lot 3 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise 
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Question: For Lot 3, in document 11.03 Annex I.3 - Lot 3 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise, there is no 
estimation on number of missions stated. Will this information be added, or should we estimate the 
number of missions on our own for the calculations? Or there are no missions expected for this Lot? 
 
Answer: Bearing in mind that the indications in the table 1 of the Simulation Exercise is an estimate 
by the GSA and in no way binding, tenderers may still make their own calculations based on their own 
planning.  
 
Question #38 
 
Reference: Annex I to Invitation to Tender, section 4.5 – Presentation of the Tender, section 4.6 – 
Content of the tender to be submitted 
 
Question: According to below mentioned references, it is not clear to us, if the proposal should be 
submitted in paper or electronic version (or if the Tenderer can choose). 
 
Ref 1: Tenderer may submit the tender on paper or only on electronic media. 
  
Ref 2: The documents which must be signed according to the tender specification maybe signed 
electronically with a qualified electronic signature (QES) of the Tenderer. 
This electronic signature must be provided by a provider which has a qualified status 
granted by a national competent authority of an EU Member State and which is listed in 
the national eIDAS Trusted Lists and the EU List of eIDAS Trusted Lists (LOTL) 
(available at https://webgate.ec.europa.eu/tl-browser/#/). 
  
Ref 3: Unless otherwise specified by the Contracting Authority, for each task, the 
Contractor shall deliver an electronic copy of each deliverable with all relevant data. 
The Contracting Authority may request that the Contractor also submits a paper copy of 
the final versions of the deliverable and annexes at no additional costs. 
  
Ref. 4: In chapter 4.6.2 of the Technical proposal (ENVELOPE/FOLDER 2) on pg. 47 
of  “Tender Specifications" is listed: ENVELOPE/FOLDER 2 – TECHNICAL OFFER (1 
(one) ORIGINAL, 1 (one) ELECTRONIC COPY  
  
Does it mean that as “ORIGINAL” is expect paper form of proposal and electronic form as ELECTRONIC 
COPY? If the both paper and electronic forms are required, how to deal with signatures, due to 
electronic form of documents are regularly signed via electronic signature? Will you accept in such 
case printed documents with electronic signature as adequate for paper form or will you require 
physical signature? 
 
Answer: The Tenderer may submit the tender on paper or only on electronic media. If submitted on 
paper, it shall also contain the electronic copies of each document submitted. In this case, the 
documents are assumed to be scans of the paper originals and no (additional) electronic signature will 
be required. For the submission “only on electronic media” the documents may bear the scanned 
signatures, provided they reflect the paper originals or, in case only electronic specimen exist, and in 
case they need to be signed, they must be signed electronically with a qualified electronic signature 
(QES) as described in section 4.7 of Annex I. 
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Question #39 
 
Reference: Annex I to Invitation to Tender, section 4.7 – Submission 
 
Question: With reference to the open procedure “GSA/OP/05/20 "Support Services for the EU Space 
Programme”, could you please confirm that Tenderer may submit the tender ONLY on electronic 
media (i.e. CD-ROM, DVD, USB)? 
 
Answer: Yes, submission only on electronic media is permitted. 
 

Question #40 
 
Reference: Annex I.1 - Lot 1 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise, Section 4.4.3 – Place of performance, 
meetings and travels 
 
Question: Task 3 from Lot 1. Section 4.4.3 of the Tender Specifications document states that the place 
of performance for task 3 “shall be performed at the GSMC-FR premises with frequent missions to 
Spain, typically every 2 (two) weeks”. Would it also be valid the opposite? i.e. place of performance at 
GSMC-ES premises with frequent missions to France, typically every 2 weeks? 
 
Answer: No, this assumption is not valid. The tender should respond to the Simulation Exercise. 
 

Question #41 
 
Reference: Annex I to Invitation to Tender – Section 3.2.1, selection criterion L9. 
 
Question: Will Economic operators/ Subcontractors be directly in charge of activities requiring access 
to CRYPTO information, or just personnel performing activities under LOT4 and LOT5? Therefore, 
could you please confirm, if the Statement regarding the authorisation of handling CRYPTO 
information from the National Security Authority (NSA) would be sufficient evidence? 
 
Answer: Under the need-to-know principle only entities handling CRYPTO information for 
performance of their tasks under the contract require the respective clearance/authorisation. The 
entities need therefore to demonstrate they have the capacity to handle CRYPTO information, and 
demonstrate the proposed advisors have the relevant authorisations, recognised by the National 
Security Authority (NSA). 
 

Question #42 
 
Reference: Annex I.10 - Lot 10 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise, Section 6, Table 2, Q.1 award criterion 
 
Question: Concerning LOT 10, in the Qualitative award criteria table it is mentioned "quality of 
deliverables provided with the tender". Could you please further elaborate on this? many thanks? 
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Answer: This criterion relates to the tenderer’s methods and organisation to provide the deliverables 
which will be provided by the winner as part of its activities under the contract. 
 

Question #43 
 
Reference: Annex I.# (# beings Lots 1 to 11) – Section 4 
 
Question: Must the CVs provided by the tenderer already be persons who are under contract 
(employment or other) with the tenderer at the time of submission of the tender?  Or can we include 
CVs of persons who will join the company once the contract is awarded. If so would a signed pre-
agreement from the person be sufficient evidence? 
 
Answer: Please refer to clarification note #2, question and answer #21. 
 
 
Question #44 
 
Reference: Annex II – Draft Contract, Article II.1 
 
Question: We understand from draft contract article II.1 that free-lancers are assimilated to the 
tenderers' personnel and as such can be included in the offer. 
 
Answer: Freelancers can be included in the tender. However, the referenced article of the draft 
contract does not anticipate the legal concept under which they are included, which is entirely up to 
the tenderer to decide. If freelancers are included as subcontractors, the provisions of the 
procurement on subcontractors apply. Please also refer to clarification note #3, question and answer 
#15. 
 
 
 
Question #45 
 
Reference: Annex I – Tender Specifications, section 2.2.10.1 
 
Question: For CVs of free-lances or one-man companies who intend to work for the tenderer but are 
not yet contracted by them be presented in the offer. Can you confirm this is the case and that their 
CVs alone suffice to pass the different capacity criteria? 
 
Answer: The requirements depend on the way the freelancer is introduced into the contract. If 
introduced as subcontractor, the requirements for subcontractors under the procurement apply. In 
such case please also refer to clarification note #3, question and answer #15. If the freelancer is 
integrated into the contractor as staff, the provision of the CV and fulfillment of respective language 
and security requirements applicable to the assigned tasks are sufficient – no participation or capacity 
requirements apply. Such possibility is however prohibited if the freelancer joins in the form of a legal 
entity under the applicable national law (“one-man company”). In this case, the participation and 
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capacity criteria apply as to any other subcontractor, including the prohibition of subcontractors to 
further subcontract without the Agency’s prior authorisation. 
 
 
Question #46 
 
Reference: Annex I.# - Lot # - TTOR and Simulation Exercise (# beings Lots 1 to 11) – Qualitative award 
criteria 
 
Question: Do we need to provide CV’s for the backup team? If so, do you expect the same amount of 
CVs as for the core team? 
 
Answer: Please refer to clarification note #2, question and answer #13. 
 
 
Question #47 
 
Reference: Annex I – Tender Specifications, section 3.2.1, L3. criterion 
 
Question: The tender specifications mention that an EU secret level FSC is required unless the 
consortium member or subcontractor does not need to handle EU secret classified information 
outside the Contracting Authority’s premises. 
 
Answer: Yes, confirmed.  
 
 
Question #48 
 
Reference: Annex I to Invitation to Tender – Section 1.5 
 
Question: Is tenderer expected to take over current incumbent population? If we are to take the costs 
of employing these people in consideration in our pricing, we would first need to know what those 
costs are. Can you please give us an indication of such costs? 
 
Answer: Please refer to clarification note #2, question and answer #18.  
 
 
Question #49 
 
Reference: Annex I to Invitation to Tender – Section 1.5 – Change of Incumbent Contractor 
 
Question: Tender Specs, 1.5 mention TUPE requirements? This do not seem compatible with the fact 
that the team that we provide in the tender should be delivering the services 
 
Answer: Please refer to clarification note #2, question and answer #18 (TUPE = Transfer of 
Undertakings Protection of Employment). 
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Question #50 
 
Reference: Annex I to Invitation to Tender – Section 2.2.4.2 – Conflicting professional interest 
 
Question: In case a company is contracting for Lot 4, Lot 6, Lot 10 or Lot 11 where EC is involved, do 
you consider that a conflict of interest might be raised if this company is participating to future Horizon 
Europe or other EC programme calls? 
 
Answer: Whether a (potential, perceived or actual) conflicting professional interest may arise can only 
be determined against the details of the case – a general answer is not possible. 
 
 
Question #51 
 
Reference: Annex I to Invitation to Tender – Section 2.2.10 – Subcontracting, Section 2.2.11 – 
Participation of Consortia  
 
Question: Can a candidate be presented by more than one tenderer or does the candidate need to be 
exclusive to one company within the same lot? 
 
Answer: Tenderers may participate in more than one lot. Economic operators / organisations may also 
participate as subcontractors in more than one tender in the same lot, however, in this case, they have 
to be able to demonstrate satisfactorily that they had no knowledge of the content of the tenders in 
which they participate beyond their own contribution.  
 
 
Question #52 
 
Reference: Annex I.3 - Lot 3 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise– table 1  
 
Question: Lot 3 PRS "security module manufacturer", can be only for one subcontractor (if the others 
have already PRS "support"), or must be for all the companies in the consortium? 
 
Answer: The SAB authorisation is only required for the company delivering the service for the given 
task. 
 
 
Question #53 
 
Reference: Annex I to Invitation to Tender – Section 2.2.4.2 – Conflicting professional interest – specific 
to Lot 3 
 
Question: What about potential conflict of interest for very specialised domains typ. PRS and PRSS SM: 
how to deliver competent staff and to engineer SM in the same company? 
 
Answer: A (potential, perceived or actual) conflicting professional interest can only be determined on 
a case-by-case basis – a general answer is not possible. 
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Question #54 
 
Reference: Annex I.# - Lot # - TTOR and Simulation Exercise– table 1 (# 4 and 5),  
 
Question: The specifications refer to CRYPTO, in the presentation it was not clear if it is needed as well 
(given the crisis cell, etc.) 
 
Answer: Lot 4 Task 5 involves COMSEC CRYPTO activities. Lot 5 Task 1 involves COMSEC CRYPTO 
activities.  
 
 
 
Question #55 
 
Reference: Annex I – Tender Specifications – Section 2.2.10 – Subcontracting  
 
Question: We are interested in some lots, but as a Subcontractor. Is there a way to help us connect to 
some potential Primes? 
 
Answer: No 
 
 
Question #56 
 
Reference: Annex I.# - Lot # - TTOR and Simulation Exercise– table 1 (#= 4 and 5), tables 1 
 
Question: In terms of Clearance Crypto.  Do you mean clearance EU SECRET CRYPTO or two deferent 
clearances: first EU SECRET and second EU CRYPTO Clearance? 
 
Answer: These are two different capabilities/clearances, complementary. 
 
Question #57 
 
Reference: Annex I.# - Lot # - TTOR and Simulation Exercise– table 1 (#= 4, 6, 10 and 11) 
 
Question: The reference DG is DEFIS, thus the EC activities can be expected to be mostly in Brussels, 
correct? 
 
Answer: Yes, as per the locations of the service provision, provided in the Technical Terms of reference 
and simulation exercise 
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Question #58 
 
Reference: Annex I.# - Lot # - TTOR and Simulation Exercise– table 1 (#= 2, 3, 4 and 5), tables 1, Annex 
I – Tender Specifications, Section 3.2.1, L3. criterion 
 
Question: Can a company which has an FSC in the group but not specifically for its Prague based 
branch, provide consultants to work only on-site in the Prague based GSA? 
 
Answer: For companies whose consultants only work on site at the GSA in Prague no FSC is required.  
 
 
Question #59 
 
Reference: Annex I.11 - Lot 11 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise 
 
Question: Could you describe more specifically the type of market development you are expecting 
 
Answer: The type of market development the Agency is expecting highly depends on the market 
segment concerned, given the different segment maturity in terms of adoption. The activities 
requested by the contractor are in the areas of project management assistance, preparation of 
summaries and presentations to internal and external stakeholders and contribution of preparation 
of documentation, including producing minutes of meeting and project reports, as well as other 
actions assigned by GSA, requiring specific expertise in the target market segment.   
 
 
Question #60  
 
Reference: Annex I.# - Lot # - TTOR and Simulation Exercise– table 1 (#= 1 to 11) 
 
Question: All How to reply in the offer to the request of " to document the team organisation"? 
 
Answer: It is assumed that the question refers to the requested presentation of the team organisation 
as part of the offer for the simulation exercise. The Tender shall present all elements of the 
organisation of the team it proposes to make available, including structure, size, back-ups, suitability 
of the expertise proposed and balance of the profiles, and any other information the tenderer finds 
suitable, that demonstrates the adequacy of the proposal in relation to the award criteria set.   
 
 
Question #61 
 
Reference: Annex I.# - Lot # - TTOR and Simulation Exercise– table 1 (#= 1 to 11) 
 
Question: Can we include CVs of persons who will join the company once the contract is awarded. If 
so would a signed pre-agreement from the person be sufficient evidence? 
 
Answer: Please refer to clarification note #2, question and answer #21. 
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Question #62 
 
Reference: Annex I – Tender Specifications, Section 4.6.3.2 – Unit prices and total price 
 
Question: Must we use the ESA Prices? 
 
Answer: It is assumed that the question refers to the audited rates used in ESA contracts. No such 
request is made in the tender, the tenderers should propose their most competitive prices as one key 
element to achieving the best ranking in the tender evaluation.   
 
 
Question #63 
 
Reference: Annex I – Tender Specifications, Section 2.1.4 – Place of performance 
 
Question: Considering COVID situation, what is the % of onsite/offsite dedication for Project Support 
in the different locations. 
 
Answer: The modalities of the work during the COVID crisis, should it persist after the award of the 
contract, will be selected in accordance with the requirements of the situation at the time. It may, 
among other possibilities, involve working from home for the consultants, as needed and appropriate 
for the tasks to be performed. 
 
 
Question #64 
 
Reference: Annex I – Tender Specifications, Section 3.2.1 – L7. Criterion (SAB authorization), L8. 
Criterion (PSC) 
 
Question: Regarding the demonstration of the availability of PSC or SAB – shall this information be 
exchanged via appointed LSO or through national authorities? This information cannot be included in 
the CVs of the personnel? 
 
Answer: Respective information may be communicated with the tender and shall be accompanied 
with the respective official documentation as proof required in line with the referenced capacity 
criteria. This includes the demonstration that the personnel proposed has a PSC at the level required, 
through a confirmation issued by the appointed LSO. PSCs may also be mentioned in CVs. 
Communication via national authorities is not requested. 
 
 
Question #65 
 
Reference: Annex I.# - Lot # - TTOR and Simulation Exercise– table 1 (#= 2, 3, 4 and 5), tables 1, Annex 
I – Tender Specifications, Section 3.2.1, L3 criterion 
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Question: Concerning the FACILITY security clearance for companies delivering only services on-site in 
your Prague office. Could you confirm that they do not need a Facility security clearance in their 
Prague offices? 
 
Answer: Please refer to question and answer #58. 
 
 
Question #66 
Reference: Annex I.# - Lot # - TTOR and Simulation Exercise (#= 1 to 11), award criteria 
 
Question: Does a potential conflict of interest on one and only one WP impact the entire lot? 
 
Answer: The tender shall not be in a conflict of interest as per Criterion L5. As related to situations of 
conflicting interests that may appear during the contract implementation, the approach towards their 
management shall be evaluated in the Q.4 award criterion as laid down in the referenced document 
for each lot and accordingly impacts the qualitive score for the entire lot. 
 
 
Question #67 
 
Reference: Annex I.# - Lot # - TTOR and Simulation Exercise (#= 3, 4, 6, 8, 10), tables 1 
 
Question: What is the % of activities to be conducted in Brussels vs Prague? 
 
Answer: The interinstitutional framework contracts shall have the following indicative ceilings 
distribution between the Agency and EC: 
 

Lot Ceiling GSA EC 

4 € 29,500,000.00 € 22,300,000.00 €   7,200,000.00 

6 € 28,600,000.00 € 13,600,000.00 € 15,000,000.00 

10 € 15,500,000.00 € 14,500,000.00 €   1,000,000.00 

11 € 25,650,000.00 € 25,150,000.00 €      500,000.00 

 
   
Question #68 
 
Reference:  Annex I – Tender Specifications 
 
Question: Current bidding documentation seems to lack in depth presentation of the technical 
environment on the GSA site. How this information could be provided? 
 
Answer: The information necessary for the preparation of the bids is provided the tender Data Pack. 
Should the bidders have questions on the particular aspects, such questions may be submitted as 
define in the Tender Specifications. 
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Question #69 
 
Reference: Annex I – Tender Specifications, section 1.7 – Procurement schedule 
 
Question: Would the deadline be re-extended, considering the COVID situation and the size of the 
procurement 
 
Answer: Please refer to corrigendum #2 to be published on the GSA website. 
 
 
Question #70 
 
Reference: Annex I – Tender Specifications, section 1.7 – Procurement schedule 
 
Question: Not knowing whether a consortium needs to provide its own CVs in the offer or if it can 
present CVs of candidates ready to work for the tenderer (letter of intent) is a blocking element with 
regards to knowing whether a consortium has enough CVs.  In view of the question above, could we 
ask for a deadline extension. 
 
Answer: Please refer to question and answer #69. 
 
 
Question #71 
 
Reference: Annex I – Tender Specifications, Section 3.2.1, L3. FSC Requirement, L8. PSC Requirement. 
 
Question:  
GSA requires the participating companies to hold a Facility and Company clearance and in addition 
individual employees who hold a personal security clearance. In some EU countries the local NSA 
requires the 'client' to provide a valid reason via an official letter before a company can apply for this 
FSC/Company clearance. Could GSA please confirm if they are willing to provide such an official letter 
which will allow a company to obtain the required 'Security Requirement'? 
 
Answer: The tender itself should be sufficient to make the request. In case the official documentation 
on FSC or PSC cannot be obtained, detailed explanation accompanied by relevant proof, justifying the 
reasons why these documents cannot be provided (i.e. due to security applicable rules) should be 
submitted with the tender.  
 
 
Question #72 
 
Reference: Annex I – Tender Specifications, Section 1.5 – Change of incumbent contractor. 
 
Question:  Regarding the section 1.5 (Change of incumbent contractor) of the tender specification 
document (ref. 11 GSA-OP-05-20_Tender Specifications), could you please confirm that for Lot 11 we 
will need, in case of successful proposal, to undertake a certain number of employees from the 
incumbent? In order to provide the best offer and estimate an adequate number of persons for the 
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core and backup team, could you please confirm that the number of people that should be considered 
in the event of transfers of undertakings are the ones stated in the document Annex I.11 to Invitation 
to Tender, table 1 under the column “Current effort (#FTEs)”? 
 
Answer: Please refer to clarification note #2, question and answer #18. 
 
Question #73 
 
Reference: Annex I – Tender Specifications, Section 2.2.10.2 – Mandatory subcontracting 
 
Question: Is it compulsory or not to subcontract a part of the activity to a selected subcontractor or 
the aforementioned paragraph [section 2.2.10.2] is superseded by the following statement in par. 
2.2.10.1: “Where no subcontracting is indicated in the tender, the work will be assumed to be carried 
out directly by the Tenderer”? 
 
Answer: The assumption in section 2.2.10.1 is independent from the mandatory subcontracting 
requirement addressed in section 2.2.10.2. The latter assumption does not supersede the former 
obligation to subcontract but applies regardless for any activity not indicated as subcontracted. 
 

Question #74 
 
Reference: Annex I.10 - Lot 10 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise – Task 4: Reporting  
 
Question: Regarding the initially planned deliverables for d) Review, preparation, collection and 
dissemination of internal comments related to external reports, of Task 4: Reporting, please could you 
confirm which “external reports” you are referring to? 
 
Answer: External report means, reports received by external suppliers, service providers, contractors 
or institutional partners which provide recurring reporting on their activities as part of their 
contractual obligations. 
 

Question #75 
 
Reference: Annex I.10 - Lot 10 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise – Section 2.4, table 1 
 
Question: Regarding the security checks, could you please clarify whether the “PSC Up to S-UE / EU-
S” required for Lot 10 is equivalent to the “Nacional Reservado” Level for Spain and the “NATO Secret” 
level for NATO? And therefore, whether it is acceptable for our employees to have the “Nacional 
Reservado” security clearance and/or NATO Secret Level or, whether we specifically need the EU 
Accreditations in place? 
 
Answer: Please refer to the question & answer #6 of clarification note #2. 
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Question #76 
 
Reference: Annex I.# - Lot # - TTOR and Simulation Exercise (#= 1 to 11), tables 1, Article I.7 draft 
Contract. 
 
Question: It is stated in the tender documentation that for developing the contract, companies must 
provide personnel in the GSA´s facilities in different European countries for a period longer than 183 
days; period in which according to international tax law, and the specific country tax law, a person is 
considered tax resident in that country and requires that employer company has a permanent 
establishment in that country. 
Please clarify if there is any exemption for not being considered as a Permanent Establishment in the 
country where GSA has its facilities when a Company that is tax resident in one European country 
carries out the services under the contract with employees in the GSA´s facilities for periods longer 
that 183 days and invoices directly to the GSA. 
Please clarify the same question but for the case that the company that is tax resident in one European 
country and has employees in the GSA´s facilities for periods longer that 183 days, is member of a 
Joint venture; and instead of invoicing directly to the GSA this company invoices to the leading 
member of the Joint Venture. 
 
Answer: There are no such exemptions for not being considered as a Permanent Establishment in the 
country where GSA has its facilities. It is the tenderers responsibility to ensure compliance with 
applicable regulations, including tax laws. 
Furthermore, economic operators are responsible for organising their invoicing procedures among 
themselves. Generally, invoicing with the GSA shall only be done by the prime and in case of a 
consortium by its duly appointed authorised representative for payment onto its respective account. 
 

Question #77 
 
Reference: Annex I.# - Lot # - TTOR and Simulation Exercise (#= 1 to 11), tables 1 
 
Question: Please clarify also if VAT exemption would apply to all JV members and subcontractors. 
 
Answer: Please refer to the question & answer #76. 
 

Question #78 
 
Reference: GSA-OP-05-20 Annex I.E - Template Financial Statements 
 
Question: It is understood that, in case of not fulfilling one of the indicators conditions stated in “13 
GSA-OP-05-20 Annex I.E - Template Financial Statements” due to the nature of the company and due 
to the law of the European country in which it is tax resident, a letter of the financial director of the 
company justifying it, is considered a valid clarification. Please, confirm. 
 
Answer: The proposed approach cannot be answered on a general basis but requires a case by case 
assessment of the condition in question. 
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Question #79 
 
Reference: Annex I – Tender Specifications, Section 4.7 - Submission 
 
Question: We plan to use a qualified electronic signature to sign the forms and statements required 
as part of the proposal and submit our proposal in electronic form only. This will mean that merging 
those documents as one file with the rest of the Administrative, Technical or Financial proposal might 
be (nearly) impossible. Can we submit such documents as separate files if we indicate their content 
very clearly in the file name? 
 
Answer: Yes, the proposed approach is in fact preferred (while neither exclusive nor impacting on the 
tender evaluation). 
 
 
Question #80 
 
Reference: Tender Specifications, Section 4.6.2 - Technical proposal (ENVELOPE/FOLDER 2) 
 
Question: As part of the Technical proposal we are asked to provide “all evidence relating to the 
selection criteria in section 3.2 “. However, we are also requested to provide all evidence related to 
selection criteria in section 3.2.1 and 3.2.3 and as part of the Administrative file (point 8 in section 
4.6.1). Also, the financial statements required as evidence for the financial selection criteria in section 
3.2.2 are supposed to be provided in the Administrative file (point 7 in section 4.6.1). Does this mean 
that we need to include the evidence related to the selection criteria in the Administrative and 
Technical file or only in one of them? If only one, which one is the correct one? 
 
Answer: Please provide the required evidence in each of the files as indicated. 
 
 
Question #81 
 
Reference: Annex I.9 - Lot 9 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise, Section 7 - Qualitative award criteria for 
Lot 9, last point of Q1, table 2 
 
Question: This award criterion reads: “In case of deviations from the FTE-estimates provided in table 
1 of section 1, credibility of the underlying reasoning in view of achieving high quality services.” Section 
1 of the same document is the ‘Overview’ which does not include any table. Do you perhaps refer to 
table 1 in section 2.3 of the same document? 
 
Answer: Indeed, the reference to table 1 should be read as under section 2.3 - Mapping and general 
requirements of the Simulation Exercise Tasks. 
 
 
Question #82 
 
Reference: Annex I.9 - Lot 9 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise, Section 7 - Qualitative award criteria for 
Lot 9, last point of Q2, table 2 
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Question: This award criteria reads: “In case of deviations from the FTE-estimates provided in table 1 
of section 1, credibility of the underlying reasoning in view of achieving high quality services.” Section 
1 of the same document is the ‘Overview’ which does not include any table. Do you perhaps refer to 
table 1 in section 2.3 of the same document? 
 
Answer: The assumption is correct – please see Question & Answer #81. 
 
 
Question #83 
 
Reference: Annex I.9 - Lot 9 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise, Section 2.1 - General rules and 
requirements for the Simulation Exercise 
 
Question: This section reads: “For each of the task, the tenderers shall provide a description as 
indicated in the section of each activity of the respective task. The formatting of the input shall always 
be provided using Arial 11 pt, 1.5 spaced with 2 (two) cm left, right, top and bottom distance. “Does 
the formatting requirement apply only to this subsection in the bidder’s proposal under “approach 
and methodology of the simulation exercise” (Q1) or to the whole Technical proposal? 
 
Answer: The formatting requirement is limited to the description of the tasks. 
 
 
Question #84 
 
Reference: Annex I.9 - Lot 9 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise, Section 7 - Qualitative award criteria for 
Lot 9, last point of Q1, table 2, Section 6 - Additional requirements for content of the tender 
 
Question: One of the award sub-criteria is called “quality of deliverables provided with the tender”. 
The wording of this sub-criterion indicates that some deliverables are required to be provided with 
the tender already. What deliverables are to be provided with the tender? 
 
Answer: This criterion relates to the tenderer methods and organisation to provide the deliverables 
which will be provided by the winner as part of its activities under the contract. 
 
 

End of document 


